

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

between

WILSON MEMORIAL GENERAL HOSPITAL
(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

and

ONTARIO NURSES ASSOCIATION
(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

EXPIRY: MARCH 31, 2001
wilso01.C01.doc

0 6034(07)

APPENDIX 3

WILSON MEMORIAL GENERAL HOSPITAL

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF NURSING							
	April 1, 1998		April 1, 1999		April 1, 2000		
		ADON		ADON		ADON	
Start		40599.00		41418.00	Deleted		
1 Year		42607.50		43485.00		44577.00	Start
2 Years		44323.50		45201.00		46332.00	1 Year
3 Years		46644.00		47775.00		48769.50	2 Years
4 Years		48945.00		49920.00		51187.50	3 Years
5 Years		51265.50		52299.00		53625.00	4 Years
6 Years		54190.50		58227.00		56647.50	5 Years
7 Years		57076.50		58227.00		59689.50	6 Years
8 Years		59982.00		61191.00		62731.50	7 Years
9 Years		62887.50		64135.50		65734.50	8 Years
GRADUATE NURSE							
	April 1, 1998		April 1, 1999		April 1, 2000		
		GN		GN		GN	
Start		17.92		18.27	Deleted		
Monthly		2912.00		2968.88			
1 Year		18.84		19.22		19.70	Start
Monthly		3061.50		3123.25		3201.25	
2 Years		19.21		19.59		20.08	1 Year
Monthly		3121.63		3183.38		3263.00	
3 Years		20.64		21.06		21.59	2 Years
Monthly		3354.00		3422.25		3508.38	
4 Years		21.68		22.12		22.68	3 Years
Monthly		3523.00		3594.50		3685.50	
5 Years		22.73		23.19		23.77	4 Years
Monthly		3693.63		3768.38		3862.63	
6 Years		24.28		24.76		25.38	5 Years
Monthly		3945.50		4023.50		4124.25	
7 Years		25.34		25.85		26.50	6 Years
Monthly		4117.75		4200.63		4306.25	
8 Years		26.62		27.15		27.84	7 Years
Monthly		4325.75		4411.88		4524.00	
9 Years		27.93		28.49		29.20	8 Years
Monthly		4538.63		4629.63		4745.00	

APPENDIX 4

WILSON MEMORIAL GENERAL HOSPITAL

SUPERIOR CONDITIONS

1. Full-time employees in the employ of the Hospital on or before October 23, 1981, shall be entitled to vacation with pay based on length of continuous service as of April 1st in any given year as follows:
 - (a) thirty (30) calendar days after one (1) year continuous service;
 - (b) after ten (10) years of continuous service one (1) additional day per year will be granted;
 - (c) after fifteen (15) years of continuous service five (5) calendar weeks will be granted;
 - (d) after twenty-five (25) years of continuous service six (6) calendar weeks will be granted.

2. Each regularly scheduled part-time employee shall be entitled to time off (without pay) for vacation as follows:
 - (a) for those hired on or before October 23, 1981:
 - (i) the employees who have one (1) or more years of continuous service but less than ten (10) years of continuous service shall be entitled to thirty (30) calendar days off;
 - (ii) employees who have completed ten (10) or more years but less than fifteen (15) years of continuous service shall be entitled to thirty (30) calendar days off plus one (1) additional day per year;
 - (iii) employees who have completed fifteen (15) or more years but less than twenty-five (25) years of continuous service shall be entitled to five (5) calendar weeks off;
 - (iv) employees who have completed twenty-five (25) years or more of continuous service shall be entitled to six (6) calendar weeks off.

3. Part-time employees who work the following days will be paid time and one-half for all hours worked:

New Year's Day (January 1 st)	2 nd Monday in February
Good Friday	Victoria Day
Dominion Day	Civic Holiday
Labour Day	Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day	Boxing Day

L4

In addition, where a part-time employee qualifies under the Employment Standards Act she or he shall receive a day's pay at her or his straight time rate.

Where an employee is required to work on a paid holiday and she or he is required to work additional hours following her or his full tour on that day, the employee shall receive **two (2)** times her or his regular salary for such additional hours worked.

4. Each full-time employee will be given **two (2)** additional float holidays in addition to those outlined in Article I.1, date of hire will not affect this condition. These float holidays are to be taken within each fiscal year.

L5

APPENDIX 5

APPENDIX

ON

LOCAL ISSUES

BETWEEN:

WILSON MEMORIAL GENERAL HOSPITAL
(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

AND:

ONTARIO NURSES ASSOCIATION
(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

ARTICLE A - RECOGNITION

A.1 The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all registered and graduate nurses employed by Wilson Memorial General Hospital, Marathon, Ontario, in a nursing capacity, save and except the Director, Nursing Services and persons above the rank of Director, Nursing Services.

ARTICLE B - MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

B.1 The Union recognizes that the management of the Hospital and the direction of the working force are responsibilities of the Employer and shall remain with the Employer except as limited by the provisions of this Agreement. The Union acknowledges that it is the function of the Employer to:

- (a) maintain order, discipline and efficiency;
- (b) hire, assign, discharge, direct, promote, demote, classify, transfer, lay-off, recall and suspend or otherwise discipline employees, provided that a claim of suspension, discipline or discharge without just cause may be dealt with as hereinafter provided;
- (c) determine in the interest of efficient operation and high standards of service, hours of work, job rating and classification, work assignments, methods of doing the work and the working establishment for the service;
- (d) generally to manage the operation that the Employer is engaged in and, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, to determine the number of personnel required, methods, procedures and equipment in connection

therewith;

- (e) discuss with the Union, make, enforce and alter from time to time, rules and regulations to be observed by the employees which are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement.

B.2 These rights shall not be exercised in a manner inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE C – UNION COMMITTEES AND REPRESENTATIVES

C.1 Union Stewards

There shall be two (2) Union Stewards, one (1) full-time and one (1) part-time.

C.2 Grievance Committee

There shall be a Grievance Committee composed of not more than two (2) employees, at least one (1) of whom is full-time and one (1) of whom is part-time.

C.3 Negotiating Committee

There shall be a Negotiating Committee composed of not more than three (3) employees, at least one (1) of whom is full-time and one (1) of whom is part-time.

C.4 Hospital-Association Committee

There shall be a Hospital-Association Committee composed of two (2) representatives of the Union, at least one (1) of whom is full-time and one (1) of whom is part-time and an equal number of representatives from the Hospital. Each party may have alternates to replace a member from time to time.

C.5 Interviews of new employees by representatives of the Union shall be conducted during the newly employed employee's orientation period.

C.6 Professional Development Committee

There shall be a Professional Development Committee composed of at least two (2) representatives of the Union, at least one (1) of whom is full-time and one (1) of whom is part-time and an equal number of representatives from the Hospital. Each party may have alternates to replace a member from time to time.

ARTICLE D – LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR UNION BUSINESS

D.1 Leave of absence for Union business shall be granted on the following conditions:

- (i) the cumulative total number of days shall not exceed forty (40);
- (ii) a request for leave shall be made in writing at least two (2) weeks

prior to the commencement of the leave, except in unusual circumstances;

- (iii) no more than two (2) employees shall be given leave at the same time.

ARTICLE E – MISCELLANEOUS

- E.1 The Employer agrees to provide a bulletin board for the use of the Union. All notices will be approved by a member of the Local Executive prior to posting.
- E.2 The Employer shall provide adequate parking space.
- E.3 Employees will be paid every other week.
- E.4 Seniority lists will be posted on or before May 1st and November 1st in each year.
- E.5 Uniform Allowance
 - (a) The Employer shall provide a uniform allowance of seventy dollars (\$70.00) annually for full-time employees and forty dollars (\$40.00) annually for regular part-time employees, to be paid in a lump sum payment in the first pay period of November of each year.
 - (b) The Employer shall continue to provide scrub gowns and lab coats to those nursing areas that presently have them provided.
 - (c) The uniform allowance (forty dollars (\$40.00) annually) shall be paid to those regular part-time employees who have worked at least sixty-five (65) shifts between November 1st of the preceding year and October 31st.
 - (d) Half (1/2) the uniform allowance (twenty dollars (\$20.00) annually) shall be paid to those regular part-time employees who have worked at least thirteen (13) shifts (whether scheduled or additional available shifts) between November 1st of the preceding year and October 31st.

ARTICLE F – SCHEDULING REGULATIONS – GENERAL

- F.1 7.5 Hour and 11.25 Hour Tours
 - (a) The Nursing Schedule for a six (6) week scheduling period shall be posted two (2) weeks in advance of the commencement of the six (6) week period. Extra and unscheduled shifts that become available may be scheduled according to seniority and must be brought to the attention of the employee. If the Employer is unable to contact the employee by twenty-four (24) hours prior to the commencement of the shift, it will be offered to regular part-time employees on the basis of seniority. It is understood that the employee is not obligated to work such shifts after the schedule is posted.

- (b) (i) The Employer agrees to schedule regular part-time employees according to their commitment on the posted schedule.
 - (ii) Where extra tours become available, they will first be offered on the basis of seniority to regular part-time employees then job-sharers, provided that such employee has not reached her or his commitment.
 - (iii) Where all regular part-time employees and job-sharers have been given the opportunity to work up to their committed tours, extra tours will then be offered to regular part-time employees then job-sharers based on their seniority, provided that this will not result in premium pay.
 - (iv) Where no regular part-time employee or job-sharer is willing to perform the available work or if this would result in premium pay, the tour will be offered to casual part-time employees on the basis of seniority.
 - (v) Where an employee is on an approved Union leave or sick leave, she or he will be allowed to fill additional shifts up to her or his commitment.
- (c) Requests for change in posted time schedules may be granted where such requests are submitted to the Director, Nursing Services or designate and co-signed by the employee willing to exchange days off or tour of duty and such changes shall not result in premium pay and not be unreasonably denied.
- (d) (i) An employee will be scheduled off for five **(5)** consecutive days at either Christmas (to include Christmas Eve Day, Christmas Day and Boxing Day) or at New Year's (to include New Year's Eve Day and New Year's Day), except in areas where the nursing complement is not normally scheduled to work weekends and paid holidays. The scheduling objectives other than G.1 (d) and (e) will not be operative during the period of December 15th to January 7th.
 - (ii) Requests for time off over Christmas and New Year's must be in to the Director of Nursing by October 1st and a list of time off from December 15th to January 7th will be posted by November 1st.
 - (iii) The scheduling of Christmas or New Year's off will be alternated from year to year so that an employee who is available to work Christmas one year will be available to work New Year's in the next year. Where it is possible to allow an employee or employees to have Christmas or other time off as requested in more than one (1) year, seniority will be the determining factor.
- (e) Employees requesting time off will endeavour to submit in writing to the Director of Nursing Services or designate, her or his request at least two (2) weeks prior to the posting of the time schedules. Any requests received

after the time schedules have been posted will be dealt with on an individual basis. Such requests will not be unreasonably denied.

F.2 Part-Time Commitment

- (a) Regular part-time employees shall be scheduled, in order of seniority, up to a maximum of twelve (12) extended shifts in a six **(6)** week period. After the most senior employee has been scheduled for twelve (12) shifts, the next most senior will be scheduled for twelve (12) shifts and so on.
- (b) If an employee is unavailable to be scheduled for work for a portion of the six **(6)** week period, the maximum number of shifts for which she or he may be scheduled shall be reduced accordingly on a pro-rata basis (i.e., for purposes of pro-rating, any seven (7) consecutive day period of unavailability will be considered to be a week). If an employee is absent because of illness or on Union business, she or he will not be considered unavailable and her or his scheduled tours will not be pro-rated.

ARTICLE G – SCHEDULING REGULATIONS

G.1 7.5 Hour Tour

- (a) The night shift will be considered the first shift of the day.
- (b) Employees will not be scheduled to work more than seven (7) consecutive tours of duty. Premium pay shall be paid for each subsequent consecutive tour ~~of~~ duty in excess ~~of~~ seven (7) until two **(2)** consecutive days off are given.
- (c) In any ~~two~~ (2) week period, at least four **(4)** days ~~off~~ must be scheduled. At least ~~two~~ (2) days off must be consecutive.
- (d) Split tours will not be scheduled.
- (e) At least forty-eight **(48)** hours ~~off~~ shall be scheduled on the completion of night duty or premium pay shall be paid for the next tour worked.
- (f)
 - (i) The Employer will schedule every second weekend off whenever possible.
 - (ii) An employee will receive premium pay as outlined in the Central Agreement for all hours worked on a third and subsequent consecutive weekend, save and except where:
 - (1) such weekend has been worked by the employee to satisfy specific days off requested by such employee; or
 - (2) such employee requested weekend work; or
 - (3) such weekend is worked as the result of an exchange of tours

L10

with another employee.

(iii) Definition of a Weekend

A weekend shall be defined as being at least sixty-four **(64)** consecutive hours off work from the completion of the Friday day tour until the beginning of the Monday day tour.

(g) No less than two (2) consecutive tours (sixteen **(16)** hours) shall be scheduled off between tour changes or premium pay shall be paid for the first tour worked **as** a result of such short change.

G.2

(a) A **prescheduled** regular part-time employee shall make a commitment to be available to work as follows:

(i) at least two **(2)** tours per week;

(ii) over either Christmas or New Year's;

(iii) at least one (1) weekend in three **(3)**, if required;

(iv) for at least fifty percent (50%) of the July –August vacation period.

(b) All other part-time employees shall be casual.

(c) There will be a call list established for regular part-time employees.

G.3

When an employee chooses to take her or his banked hours off in lieu time with pay, the time off with pay will be scheduled at a time mutually agreed upon between the Employer and the employee. Banked hours will be capped at sixty (60) hours. Time off must be taken within one (1) year of earning the banked hours. It is understood that Article **14.09** is applicable to part-time employees. Where a part-time employee works in excess of her or his commitment of twelve **(12)** **11.25** hour shifts in the six **(6)** week scheduling period, she or he may elect to bank this time.

G.4

The Master Schedule shall not be altered without first holding a special meeting to discuss the proposed changes.

G.5

It is understood that any of the above scheduling regulations may be waived when initiated by the employee and premium payment under Article **14** would not be applicable.

G.6

Where the above scheduling regulations are not maintained, premium pay under Article **14** shall apply.

G.7

An employee shall not be scheduled on-call/standby on her or his days off or while on vacation.

ARTICLE H – EXTENDED TOURS

H.1 (a) Introduction

A compressed work week may be introduced when:

- (i) eighty percent (80%) of the employees affected ~~so~~ indicate by secret ballot; and
- (ii) there is sufficient and suitable staffing complement available to enable the compressed work program and resultant work schedules to function; and
- (iii) the Employer agrees to implement the compressed work week.

(b) Trial Period

The parties agree that, subject to the above provision,

- (i) the trial period ~~of~~ the compressed work week will be six (6) months, subject to the above provision which will include the summer months but may be extended another three (3) months where necessary for further evaluation and where it is mutually agreed between the parties;
- (ii) the system and schedule used for the compressed work week will be evaluated independently by:
 - (1) nursing administration;
 - (2) nursing staff;during or before the end of the six (6) month trial period.
- (iii) the compressed work week will be continued if:
 - (1) seventy percent (70%) of the employees affected ~~so~~ indicate by secret ballot cast at the end ~~of~~ the six (6) month trial period; and
 - (2) the Employer agrees.

(c) Discontinuation

A compressed work week may be discontinued:

- (i) when seventy percent (70%) of the employees ~~so~~ indicate by secret ballot; or
- (ii) by the Employer because of:

- (1) adverse affects on patient care; or
- (2) inability to provide a workable staffing schedule; or
- (3) where the Employer wishes to do so for other reasons which are neither unreasonable nor arbitrary; or
- (4) financial constraints.

When notice of discontinuation is given by either the employees or the Employer:

- (i) the parties shall meet within two (2) weeks of the giving of notice to review the decision to discontinue; and
- (ii) where it is determined that the compressed work week will be discontinued, the employees affected shall be given sixty (60) days' notice before the schedules are so amended.

(d) Participation

All full-time, part-time and casual employees falling within the bargaining units shall, as a condition of employment, be required to work extended tours on a rotation basis in accordance with the unit's posted schedule.

H.2 (a) 11.25 Hour Tour – Full-Time

- (i) Not more than three (3) consecutive tours of work will be scheduled.
- (ii) Split tours will not be scheduled.
- (iii) An employee will not be required to change tours of duty more than once during a work week.
- (iv) A period of two (2) consecutive tours off shall be scheduled between changes of tour.
- (v) The first shift of the day shall be the day shift.
- (vi) At least forty-eight (48) hours off shall be scheduled on the completion of night duty or premium pay shall be paid for the next tour worked.
- (vii) Every second weekend will be scheduled off.
- (viii) Premium payment shall not be paid when a second consecutive weekend is worked as a result of the employee requesting weekend work or such weekend work results from exchanges in shifts with another employee.
- (ix) Premiums will apply for work on a third consecutive and subsequent

weekend worked.

(b) Shift Scheduling 11.25 Hours – Part-Time

- (i) A **prescheduled** regular part-time employee shall make a commitment to be available to work as follows:
 - (1) to work twelve **(12)** extended tours in a six (6) week scheduling period;
 - (2) over either Christmas or New Year's;
 - (3) every second weekend;
 - (4) for at least fifty percent (50%) of July – August vacation period.
- (ii) At least forty-eight **(48)** hours off shall be scheduled on the completion of night duty or premium pay shall be paid for the next tour worked.
- (iii) No more than three (3) consecutive tours will be scheduled.
- (iv) Every second weekend will be scheduled **off** when possible.
- (v) Premium payment shall not be paid when a second consecutive weekend is worked as a result of the employee requesting weekend work or such weekend work results from exchanges in shifts with another employee.
- (vi) Premiums will apply for work on a third consecutive and subsequent weekend worked.

H.3 Scheduling – 11.25 Hour Tour – Full-Time and Part-Time

Weekend Definition

- (a) A weekend shall be a minimum of sixty (60) consecutive hours off work during the period following the completion of Friday day shift until the commencement of the Monday day shift.
- (b) Where an employee is scheduled to work and works overtime in conjunction with the normal completion time of the Friday day shift or the normal commencement time of the Monday day shift, such overtime will not be construed to be work performed on a weekend.

H.4 Meal and Rest Periods

Subject to Article 13.02, meal and rest periods will be scheduled as follows:

two **(2)** fifteen **(15)** minute rest periods; and

two (2) thirty (30) minute meal periods. The unpaid meal time will be the thirty (30) minute lunch time and the first fifteen (15) minutes of the supper time.

H.5 Central Agreement

All other central issues are applicable.

ARTICLE I – VACATIONS

- I.1 The vacation entitlement year shall be from April 1st in any given year to March 31st of the following year.
- I.2 Vacations may be taken at any time of the year and will be scheduled as follows:
- (a) No vacation days may be taken prior to completion of probationary period.
 - (b) A vacation request list shall be posted by April 1st. All employees shall indicate their vacation preference by May 1. A finalized vacation list shall be posted by May 15th.
 - (c) An employee may select from vacation not booked as of May 1st on a first-come-first-served basis.
 - (d) In the event of conflict between two (2) employees as to the timing of vacation, seniority will govern. However, once an employee has indicated a preferred vacation period, she or he may not then exercise seniority rights to change the stated period.
 - (e) There shall be no carrying over of annual vacation. However, the Administrator may authorize the carry over of an employee's annual vacation entitlement.
 - (f) Vacation may be commenced on any day of the week.
 - (g) Vacation entitlement shall not be taken in more than four (4) separate time periods within the vacation year.
 - (h) Vacation payout for part-time and casual employees for the period April 1st – March 31st will be paid in April annually on a separate itemized pay cheque.
- I.3 Prior to leaving on vacation, employees shall be notified of the date and time on which to report for work following vacation.

ARTICLE J – PAID HOLIDAYS

- J.1 The Employer recognizes the following days as paid holidays:

L15

New Year's Day (January 1 st)	Civic Holiday
2 nd Monday in February	Labour Day
Good Friday	Thanksgiving Day
Easter Monday	Remembrance Day (November 11 th)
Victoria Day	Christmas Day (December 25 th)
Canada Day (July 1 st)	Boxing Day (December 26 th)

- J.2 Lieu days off for full-time employees shall be scheduled at a time mutually agreed upon between the Employer and the employee but must be taken within thirty (30) days of the holiday. Paid holidays may not be taken until they have been earned.
- J.3 A tour that begins or ends during the twenty-four (**24**) hour period of the paid holiday, the employee shall be paid at time and one-half for all actual hours worked on the holiday.

ARTICLE K – JOB-SHARING

- K.1 The Employer and the Union must mutually agree to implement job-sharing. Only one (1) full-time position at any one time will be a shared job during the trial period.
- (a) Job-sharing requests with regard to full-time positions shall be considered on an individual basis.
 - (b) Total hours worked by the job-sharers shall equal one (1) full-time position. The division of these hours or the schedule shall be determined by mutual agreement between the two (2) employees and the Director, Nursing Services or designate. Job-sharers may be requested to work tours outside of the tours of the full-time position.
 - (c) The above schedules shall conform with the scheduling provisions of the Full-Time Collective Agreement.
 - (d) Each job-sharer may exchange shifts with her or his partner, as well as with other employees as provided by the Collective Agreement.
 - (e) The job-sharers involved will have the right to determine which partner works on scheduled paid holidays and job-sharers shall only be required to work the number of paid holidays that a full-time employee would be required to work.
 - (f) It is expected that both job-sharers will cover each other's incidental illnesses. If because of unavoidable circumstances, one cannot cover the other, the Director, Nursing Services must be notified to book coverage. Job-sharers are not required to cover their partner in the case of prolonged or extended absences.
 - (g) Vacation, Maternity Leave and Other Leaves Pursuant to Article 11 of the Central Agreement

In the event that one (1) member of the job-sharing arrangement goes on

any of the above leaves of absence, the remaining partner may either take all of her or his partner's shifts or fill in up to the regular part-time commitment. In the latter case, the remaining shifts will be filled in accordance with Article 10.05 of the Part-Time Collective Agreement.

- (h) All other provisions covering job-sharing are contained in the Central Agreement.

K.2 Implementation

- (a) Where the job-sharing arrangement arises out of the filling of a vacant full-time position, both job-sharing positions will be posted and selection will be based on the criteria set out in the Collective Agreement.
- (b) An incumbent full-time employee who has had her or his request for job-sharing approved by the Director, Nursing Services may do so without having her or his half of the position posted. The other half of the job-sharing position will be posted and selection will be made on the criteria set out in the Collective Agreement.
- (c) If one of the job-sharers leaves the arrangement, her or his position will be posted. If there is no successful applicant to the posted position, the remaining employee will revert to her or his former position. If the remaining employee was previously part-time, then the shared position would revert to a full-time position and be posted according to the Collective Agreement.

K.3 Discontinuation

- (a) Either party may discontinue the job-sharing arrangement with ninety (90) days' notice. Upon receipt of such notice, a meeting shall be held between the parties within thirty (30) days to discuss the discontinuation.
- (b) Effective for new job-sharing arrangements entered into subsequent to the date of this Agreement, either job-sharer may discontinue the job-sharing arrangement within ninety (90) days of commencement and each employee will revert to their former position. Subsequent to the ninety day period, discontinuance requires the agreement of both job-sharers as well as the Employer.

ARTICLE L – PRE-PAID LEAVE PLAN

- L.1 One (1) full-time and one (1) part-time employee will be allowed off at a time on the Pre-Paid Leave Plan.

ARTICLE M – WORKERS' COMPENSATION/MODIFIED WORK PROGRAMME

- M.1 (a) The Employer will notify the Local President of the names of all employees who go off work due to a work related injury or when an employee(s) goes on L.T.D.

- (b) When it has been medically determined that an employee is unable to return to the full duties of her or his position due to disability, the Employer will notify and meet with the Staff Representative of the Ontario Nurses' Association and the Local Representative to discuss the circumstances surrounding the employee's return to work.
- (c) The Employer agrees to provide the Union and the employee with a copy of the Workers' Compensation Board Form 7 at the same time it is sent to the Board.

ARTICLE N- NOTE

N.1 The Employer will pay the cost of physicians' notes, if required by the Hospital.

DATED at Marathon, Ontario, this 7th day of March, 2002.

FOR THE EMPLOYER

Philip Pearce BScN/NDCS

FOR THE UNION

Bob Lupton

Carol Justen

Sheryl Lees RN

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN:

WILSON MEMORIAL GENERAL HOSPITAL
(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

AND:

ONTARIO NURSES' ASSOCIATION
(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

RE: VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE

The Employer agrees that during the term of this Collective Agreement, policies will be developed to deal with the issue of violence in the workplace. The bargaining unit will be involved in the development of these policies.

DATED at Marathon, Ontario, this 7th day of March, 2002.

FOR THE EMPLOYER

John P. Pascoe BScN RN CCS

FOR THE UNION

Bob Lupton

Carol Gustafson

Sheryl Lees RN

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN:

WILSON MEMORIAL GENERAL HOSPITAL
(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

AND:

ONTARIO NURSES ASSOCIATION
(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

RE: PAID UNION LEAVE FOR JANET GOBEIL – LOCAL CO-ORDINATOR

The parties agree that an additional twenty (20) days of unpaid leave of absence for Union business shall be granted to the bargaining unit. It is understood that this Letter of Understanding is in effect only while Janet Gobeil is the Local Co-ordinator for the Ontario Nurses' Association. It is further understood that such leave will be provided only if coverage can be provided and such leave will not be unreasonably denied.

DATED at Marathon, Ontario, this 7th day of March, 2002.

FOR THE EMPLOYER

John Pascoe BScN RAI DCS

FOR THE UNION

Rob [Signature]

Carol Gust R.N.

Sheryl Lees R.N.
